1958

Stanton Transportation Company et al v. Marvin Davis et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The parties will sometimes be designated in this brief as follows: Plaintiff and appellant, Stanton Transportation Company, as "Stanton," plaintiff, Continental Emsco Company, a division of Youngstown Sheet and Tube Company, as "Emsco," and defendants and respondents, Marvin

Davis, Jack Davis, Jean Davis and Joan Preston, partners doing business under the firm name of Davis Oil Company as "Davis."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal involves a very narrow question. The problem is simply whether the trial court erred in ruling that Stanton was not entitled to a mechanic's lien under the Utah mechanics' lien statute for work performed in transporting an oil well drilling rig to a drilling site where it was used to drill an oil well.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

There is no serious dispute as to the facts related to the issue presented on this appeal. The trial court below found upon all of the essential facts, which findings are not here objected to by Davis. Record references will therefore for the most part be to the findings of the court below. References to the clerk's files will be designated as "R." and to the transcript of the evidence of the hearing on September 20, 1957, as "T.R.A." and to the transcript of the evidence of the hearing on November 5 and 6, 1957 as "T.R.B."

Stanton Transportation Company is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and authorized to do business in the State of Utah as a common carrier of equipment and supplies used in drilling oil and gas wells (R. 78). The Davis Oil Company is a partnership consisting of Marvin Davis, Jack Davis, Jean

Davis and Joan Preston, which is engaged in the business of drilling oil and gas wells and related activities. Davis was at all times herein material the owner of an oil and gas lease covering the following described property in San Juan County, State of Utah:

“The Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 27, Township 41 South, Range 24 East of the Salt Lake Meridian.”

On December 19, 1956, Davis entered into a contract with Walker-Wilson Drilling Company, oil and gas drilling contractors, whereby Walker-Wilson agreed to drill an oil and gas well for Davis on the premises covered by the oil and gas lease referred to above (R. 78). At the time the parties entered into this contract, it was contemplated that the drilling rig was to be on the new location and ready to drill on or before December 25, 1956. The drilling rig which was to be used had been dismantled and stacked at a former drilling site located approximately 36 miles southeast of Hayden, Colorado. In order to reach the location where the rig had been stacked, it was necessary to travel over 30 miles on unimproved roads and there was several feet of snow on the ground where the rig had been stacked. The total distance from the old site to the new site was 496 miles. In order to reach the new site it was necessary to travel over another 42 miles of unimproved roads and ford the San Juan River. Some of the individual items which had to be transported weighed as much as 40,300 pounds (R. 79). Both Davis and Walker-Wilson knew that in order to drill the oil and gas well it would be necessary to obtain specially designed cranes and trucks to transport the

drilling rig to the new site and to assist in erecting the drilling equipment thereon. Their contract specifically provided that Walker-Wilson was to obtain the necessary equipment and that Davis was to pay for the cost of transporting the drilling rig to the new site and erecting it thereon (R. 78, 79).

Because of the tremendous weights involved and the extremely rough terrain which had to be traversed, it was necessary to use specially designed trucks and equipment and men specially trained in the transporting of oil well drilling equipment. Stanton owns equipment designed to make such moves and employs men who are trained in this type of work (R. 79). It has been engaged in the business of transporting such equipment in the intermountain area since 1926 (T.R.A. 7).

Walker-Wilson entered into a contract with Stanton whereby Stanton agreed to move the drilling rig and other equipment necessary to drill the oil well from the old site to the new site and to assist in erecting the drilling rig and preparing the new site so that an oil well could be drilled thereon. Pursuant to said agreement, Stanton transported the drilling rig from the old site to the new location. In so doing, Stanton used 23 trucks and approximately 30 men. In order to erect the drilling rig and prepare the drilling site so that an oil well could be drilled thereon, it is necessary to use winches, cranes and other special equipment such as that owned by Stanton. Before the drilling equipment could be loaded at the old location, in many cases it was necessary to use winches and cranes to break the equipment loose from the frozen ground. After they reached the

drilling site, Stanton's men and equipment were used to erect the superstructure, to lift draw works to the drilling floor, install mud tanks and do other work in preparing the drilling rig and equipment so that it could be used to drill an oil well. Without Stanton's men and equipment it would have been impossible to have erected the drilling rig or to have drilled an oil well on the Davis lease (R. 79, 80).

All of the equipment had been moved to the new site, the drilling rig had been erected and was ready to start drilling on December 25, 1956. The drilling rig was used in drilling an oil well which was completed as a producer on or about February 27, 1958, on premises described above (R. 18, 80, T.R.B. 21).

The value of work and labor performed and services rendered by Stanton in moving the drilling rig and other equipment to the new site was \$10,984.64. The value of work and labor performed and services rendered by Stanton in erecting the drilling rig and preparing the site for drilling was \$1,244.50. These charges are fair and reasonable for the work and labor performed and the services rendered and are made in accordance with Stanton's tariffs which are on file with the Interstate Commerce Commission. Walker-Wilson was billed for said amounts but all attempts to collect said charges have failed and the full amount is now due and owing (R. 80).

The contract between Davis and Walker-Wilson involved more than \$500.00 but Davis did not obtain a bond for the protection of mechanics and materialmen from Walker-Wilson in accordance with the provisions of Section 14-2-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953 (T.R.A. 4).

Stanton filed a notice of lien for the above stated amounts with the County Recorder of San Juan County on March 12, 1957, and commenced action on June 26, 1957, to foreclose its mechanic's lien and/or to obtain a personal judgment against the respondents for the amount of its claims pursuant to the provisions of Section 14-2-2, Utah Code Annotated, 1953 (R. 1-4). Stanton caused notice to be published to lien claimants and Continental-Emsco Company, a division of the Youngstown Sheet and Tube Company, appeared, presented its lien claim and was made a party plaintiff. Continental-Emsco obtained a judgment against Davis, from which Davis has appealed and which has been consolidated with Stanton's appeal for the convenience of the court. No further discussion of the Davis appeal and the problems related to Continental-Emsco will be mentioned in this brief.

On September 13, 1957, Stanton entered into a stipulation with Davis whereby Stanton released its lien claim which was the subject matter of the action with the understanding that if the trial court should adjudge and decree, that except for said release Stanton would be entitled to a lien upon the property of Davis and would be entitled to foreclose said lien, and if upon the judgment becoming final and after all appellate procedures had been exercised or waived, Davis did not forthwith pay the principal amount of the judgment with interest accrued thereon as determined by the court, then judgment could be entered on Stanton's motion in its favor against the surety named in the corporate surety bond which respondents filed with the court (R. 26-28).

Under the foregoing state of facts, the trial court found that Stanton was entitled to a mechanic's lien for the value of services rendered and labor performed in erecting the drilling rig and preparing the site for drilling and also to a personal judgment against the individual partners for this amount for failure to obtain a bond from Walker-Wilson in accordance with the provisions of Section 14-2-1.

The court also found that Stanton was not entitled to a mechanic's lien for the value of the services rendered and work performed in transporting the drilling rig to the new site since this did not constitute the performance of work for the prospecting, developing, preservation or working of an oil and gas well within the meaning of the Utah mechanics' lien statute. It is from this finding that Stanton appeals.

STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED ON

POINT I.

ONE WHO TRANSPORTS DRILLING EQUIPMENT TO SITE WHERE IT IS USED TO DRILL AN OIL WELL IS ENTITLED TO A MECHANIC'S LIEN FOR VALUE OF WORK PERFORMED UNDER UTAH MECHANICS' LIEN STATUTE.

- (a) Legislative History and Wording of Statute Support This Conclusion.
- (b) Cases From Other Jurisdictions Have Held That Transportation is a Lienable Item Under Mechanics' Lien Statutes Which Con-

tain Language Much More Restrictive Than That Contained in the Utah Statute.

- (c) Utah Mechanics' Lien Statute is to be Construed Liberally to Effect Object of Statute.
- (d) Public Policy Favors the Granting of Mechanics' Liens to Persons Who Perform Work Such as That Performed by Stanton.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

ONE WHO TRANSPORTS DRILLING EQUIPMENT TO SITE WHERE IT IS USED TO DRILL AN OIL WELL IS ENTITLED TO A MECHANIC'S LIEN FOR VALUE OF WORK PERFORMED UNDER UTAH MECHANICS' LIEN STATUTE.

- (a) Legislative History and Wording of Statute Support This Conclusion.

The primary question before the court on this appeal is whether the Utah legislature in enacting Section 38-1-3, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, intended that one who renders service or performs work in transporting oil well drilling equipment to a site where it is used to drill an oil well is entitled to a mechanic's lien for the value of the work performed. This is the first time the question has been before this court; it is of extreme importance because of the tremendous growth of the oil and gas industry in the State of

Utah during the past few years and the indications that it will continue to grow in the future.

The Utah statute expressly provides that one who performs work for the development of an oil well shall be entitled to a mechanic's lien for the value of the work performed. We have found no other mechanics' lien statute which contains a provision relating to oil and gas wells as broad as the provision which appears in the Utah statute. Therefore, cases from other jurisdictions having different statutes are of little help in construing the Utah statute and we must rely to a large extent on the wording of the statute itself and upon its legislative history in determining the legislative intent.

The statute provides as follows:

"38-1-3. Those entitled to lien—What May Be Attached—Lien on Ores Mined.—Contractors, sub-contractors and all persons performing labor upon, or furnishing materials to be used in, the construction or alteration of, or addition to, or repair of, any building, structure or improvement upon land; all foundry men and boiler makers; all persons performing labor or furnishing materials for the construction, repairing or carrying on of any mill, manufactory or hoisting works; *all persons who shall do work or furnish materials for the prospecting, development, preservation or working of any mining claim, mine, quarry, oil or gas well, or deposit; and licensed architects and engineers and artisans who have furnished designs, plats, plans, maps, specifications, drawings, estimates of cost, surveys or superintendence, or who have rendered other like professional service, or bestowed labor, shall have a lien upon the property upon or concerning which*

they have rendered service, performed labor or furnished materials, for the value of the service rendered, labor performed or materials furnished by each respectively, whether at the instance of the owner or of any other person acting by his authority as agent, contractor or otherwise. Such liens shall attach only to such interest as the owner may have in the property, but the interest of a lessee of a mining claim, mine or deposit, whether working under bond or otherwise, shall for the purposes of this chapter include products mined and excavated while the same remain upon the premises included within the lease." (Emphasis Added.)

It would seem clear that one who performs work in transporting drilling equipment to an isolated site where it is used to drill an oil well has performed work for the development of an oil well. This is the only reason that the work is done and without it there can be no oil well. The statute provides that those who have done such work shall have a lien upon the property *upon* or *concerning* which the work was done. The legislature thereby clearly expressed its intent that the work need not actually be performed upon the property so long as it is work which concerns the development of an oil well which is drilled on the property.

The legislative history of the statute supports the conclusion that the Utah legislature intended that persons who perform work such as that performed by Stanton should be protected. The Utah mechanics' lien statute has contained substantially the same provisions since 1894. Laws of the Territory of Utah, 1894, Chapter XLI. However, prior to 1933, there was no specific provision in the

statute relating to oil wells. In 1933 the statute was amended to give mechanics' liens to all persons who shall do work or furnish materials for the prospecting, development, preservation or working of any mining claim, mine, quarry, oil or gas well or deposit. Rev. Stat. Utah, 1933, Section 52-1-3. Prior to 1933, the statute gave liens only upon property *upon* which the parties named therein had rendered service, performed labor or furnished materials. At the same time the statute was amended to specifically provide for oil and gas wells, its coverage was broadened to give liens not only upon property *upon* which services had been rendered, labor performed or materials furnished but also to give liens on property *concerning* which said activities had been performed. It is important to note that though the rest of the statute remained substantially the same, these two additions were made at the same time. The fact that these two changes were made at the same time was no mere coincidence. The legislature must have realized that in the development, preservation and working of an oil and gas well there are many activities that must be performed such as transporting drilling equipment to isolated well sites which might not technically be considered services rendered or work or labor performed *upon* the particular property but are certainly services rendered or work performed *concerning* the property and that this work is just as essential to the development of an oil well as the work which is performed upon the property. By inserting the word *concerning*, the legislature undoubtedly intended that the parties rendering such services or performing such work should be protected even though the work or services

were not actually rendered or performed *upon* the property.

It should also be noted that the provisions of Section 38-1-3 which give liens to those who construct, alter, add to or repair any building, structure or improvement on land provides that those who "*perform labor upon*" shall have a lien whereas the provision pertaining to oil wells gives a lien to all persons "*who shall do work for*" the prospecting, development, preservation or working of any oil and gas well. Certainly the legislature did not intend to be more restrictive in granting liens to those doing work for the development or working of oil by providing that those who "*shall do work for*" shall have a lien instead of limiting it only to those "*who perform labor upon.*" On the contrary, the provision regarding oil and gas wells is much broader. It includes the activities covered by the term "labor performed upon," but in addition it was intended to extend the coverage beyond that. That this is true is evidenced by the fact as noted above, that at the same time the legislature amended the mechanics' liens statute to specifically provide for oil and gas wells, it also extended the property upon which liens could be imposed from property upon which services had been rendered, labor performed or materials furnished to include property *concerning which* such activities had been directed.

In this connection, the courts that have considered the difference between the words labor and work have almost universally held that the word work has a much more com-

prehensive meaning than labor. The Court in *State v. Rose*, 125 La. 463, 51 So. 496, 497, said that:

“ * * * the word ‘work’ has a much more comprehensive meaning than the term ‘labor’ and has been thus defined: ‘to exert one’s self for a purpose, to put forth effort for the attainment of an object; to be engaged in the performance of a task, duty or the like.’ The term as thus defined covers all forms of physical or mental exertions, or both combined, for the attainment of some object other than recreation or amusement. * * *”

and the court in *Silver v. Harriss*, 165 La. 83, 115 So. 376, 378, stated that:

“* * * when the statute accords its benefits to all persons, natural or artificial, who may have done any ‘work’ or performed any ‘labor’ it is clear that it recognizes the distinction between the terms and that the use of the former is intended to cover a broader field of activity than the use of the latter; * * *.”

Again, it is no coincidence that these three changes appear together for the first time in 1933. The legislature must have realized that in the development of an oil well there is much work, such as transporting drilling equipment to isolated drilling locations which technically might not be considered as labor performed upon the property. The legislature, therefore, specifically provided that all persons who do work for the development of an oil well shall have a lien upon the property concerning which they have performed the work. The statute certainly did not restrict the lien to one who has actually performed labor

upon the property otherwise the words "*doing work for*" or "*concerning which*" would have no meaning.

- (b) Cases From Other Jurisdictions Have Held That Transportation is a Lienable Item Under Mechanics' Lien Statutes Which Contain Language Much More Restrictive Than That Contained in the Utah Statute.

There are no cases that have considered the question of whether work performed in transporting drilling equipment to a location where it is used to drill an oil well is a lienable item under the Utah statute. The Utah statute gives a lien to all persons who do work for the development of an oil well, upon the property concerning which their work is directed. We have found no other mechanics' lien statute which purports to give protection to such a large class of persons and no decisions on this question under statutes that are even roughly similar to the Utah statute. However, there are many cases where the courts have held that those who perform work in transporting equipment or supplies that are used in improving property are entitled to a mechanic's lien for the value of the work performed even though the mechanics' lien statutes involved were much more restrictive than the Utah statute. A discussion of the reasoning of the courts which have held that transportation is a lienable item under more restrictive statutes may be of assistance in the instant case.

We have found cases from only two jurisdictions where the courts have directly ruled on the question of whether a person who performs work in transporting drilling equip-

ment to a well site is entitled to a mechanic's lien for the value of the work performed. The Oklahoma courts have held that such persons are entitled to a mechanic's lien while the Texas courts have held that they are not. *Gray v. Magdalena Oil Co.*, 240 S. W. 683. It should be noted, however, that the Texas courts have held that their mechanics' lien statute is to be strictly construed. *McClellen v. Haley*, 237 S. W. 627, 629. This rule of construction is contrary to the majority rule and contrary to the rule adopted in Utah. U. C. A. 1953, Section 68-3-2.

In *Cleveland v. Hightower*, 108 Okla. 84, 234 Pac. 614, the Oklahoma Supreme Court in construing a statute which provided that:

“* * * any person * * * who shall, under contract express or implied, with the owner of a leasehold for oil and gas purposes * * * perform any labor in constructing or putting together any machinery used in drilling * * * shall have a lien,’ * * *.”

held that one who performs work in transporting pipe and casing to an oil and gas leasehold is entitled to a mechanic's lien under the Oklahoma statute. In so holding, the court stated:

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