1959

Stanton Transportation Company et al v. Marvin Davis et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

In this Brief the procedure adopted by Plaintiff and Appellant for the designation of the parties and others will be followed. Stanton Transportation Company will sometimes be referred to as "Stanton"; Continental Em-

sco will sometimes be referred to as "Emsco"; Davis Oil Company and its partners will sometimes be referred to as "Davis"; and Walker and Wilson Drilling Company will sometimes be referred to as "Walker-Wilson" or as "driller". The following abbreviations will be used; "R" for the Clerk's files; "TRA" for the transcript of the hearing of September 20, 1957, and "TRB" for the transcript of the hearing on November 5 and 6, 1957.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellant's Statement of Facts is inadequate and in some respects misleading.

Stanton is a common carrier, operating under Certificate No. 9787 issued by the Interstate Commerce Commission, and is primarily engaged in the hauling of oil field equipment and supplies. Prior to the events leading to this case, Stanton had hauled oil and gas well drilling rigs for Walker and Wilson Drilling Company 3 or 4 times over a period of about 2 years. (TRA 7-8, 30-31) The relationship between Walker-Wilson and Stanton was governed by published tariffs on file with the Interstate Commerce Commission. (TRA 8-9)

In Appellant's Statement of Facts (pages 3 and 4 of its Brief) are statements which erroneously suggest and imply that Davis and the driller contracted for transportation to the drill site of the *particular* drilling rig that was used.

There is nothing whatsoever in the record to support those statements. No reference of any kind is made in the contract to either the particular drilling rig or its location at the time the contract was executed. Moreover, under questioning by Stanton's counsel, Marvin Davis

testified, and his testimony is uncontradicted, that he was not "informed as to the whereabouts of the drilling rig that would be used by Walker and Wilson Drilling Company to drill this well", and that he did not discuss this matter with the officers of Walker-Wilson. (TRB 23)

In essence the drilling contract provided that Walker-Wilson would drill the oil and gas well and Davis would pay for the well. Attached to the contract was a Schedule "A" checklist of items to be furnished by each of the parties, and a Schedule "B" which designated the operations to be performed by each party. Paragraph 4 of the contract in part provided:

4. In full compensation to Contractor [driller] for compliance with the terms of this contract, furnishing the items designated in said Schedule "A", and performing the operations designated in Schedule "B" hereof, shall pay the Contractor the sum computed under said Schedule "B" on the following rates: * * *

d/ For all operations designated therein by mark "X" in the column entitled "FOOTAGE DRILLING RATE", the sum of \$8.25 per EACH LINEAL FOOT OF HOLE DRILLED.

Among the operations for which the driller was to be compensated at the rate of \$8.25 per lineal foot of hole drilled were the following: moving in equipment, rigging up, drilling and reaming surface hole, drilling full sized hole, moving out. Among the items designated in Schedule "A" to be furnished by the driller, for which \$8.25 per lineal foot constituted the consideration, were the following: complete unitized draw works with two engines & sand reel, mud pumps, mud storage tanks,

mud testing equipment, fuel (butane, diesel oil, etc.) & storage, rig mats and installation, rat hole installed, water and water line to 50' from well site, water storage tanks, cranes and trucks for moving in and rigging up, cranes and trucks for tearing down and moving out, welding on rigging up, portable generator (30 KW), rig wiring and lights, drilling mast & substructure, running supplies & oils and greases.

At the drill site Stanton's employees erected the rig. (TRA 13, 22, 34) For these services its charges were \$1,244.50. Walter Utzinger, President of Stanton, testified that these were "freight charges" just as were the charges for actual transportation. His testimony in this connection was as follows:

A. I'd like to explain that freight charges. A lot of this freight charges are essential to the transportation. In fact all of them are. They are for, they are all freight charges. Even though they show hourly rates, they are in performance either in origin or destination for setting the equipment that has been transported, and are still transported materials and related to the transportation, and therefore, they are regulated by the Interstate Commerce Commission and if they weren't then they would be subject to— * * *

Q. What I was referring to was that some of these were for freight charges, that is transportation, moving the rig, and some of them I believe you testified were for setting the rig in place after it was moved on to the location.

A. Still part of the transportation. (TRA 33-34)

Stanton's charges for the transportation of the rig totaled \$10,984.64.

The trial court found that the charges of \$10,984.64 for actual transportation and \$1,244.50 for erecting the drilling rig were fair and reasonable for the labor and work performed and were made "in accordance with the tariffs of Stanton Transportation Company lawfully on file with the Interstate Commerce Commission" (R. 80). The court concluded that Stanton was not entitled to recover the sum of \$10,984.64 representing charges for transporting the rig to the well site because "Such charges are not lienable and do not constitute the performance of work or the furnishing of materials for the prospecting, developing, preservation or working of an oil and gas well" (R. 83). The court concluded that Stanton was entitled to recover the sum of \$1,244.50 "representing charges for labor and work performed in erecting the drilling rig" (R. 82).

STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED ON

POINT I

FREIGHT CHARGES FOR TRANSPORTING
DRILLING RIG ARE NOT LIENABLE UNDER
OUR MECHANICS' LIEN STATUTE.

- (a) Construction of Statute
- (b) Legislative History of Statute

POINT II

THE CONTRACT BETWEEN DAVIS AND THE
DRILLER DID NOT COVER TRANSPORTA-
TION CHARGES.

POINT III

CHARGES FOR TRANSPORTATION OF EQUIPMENT SUCH AS A DRILLING RIG ARE NOT LIENABLE UNDER MECHANICS' LIEN LAWS.

POINT I

FREIGHT CHARGES FOR TRANSPORTING DRILLING RIG ARE NOT LIENABLE UNDER OUR MECHANICS' LIEN STATUTE

(a) Construction of Statute

While Section 68-3-2, UCA 1953, provides that the statutes of Utah should be "liberally construed with a view to effect the objects of the statutes and to promote justice", it should be remembered that mechanic's liens are purely statutory, not contractual, and that where the statute fails, courts cannot create rights and should not do so by unnatural and forced construction. *Eccles Lumber Co. v. Martin*, 31 U. 241, 87 Pac. 713. As was stated by this Court in the case of *Park City Meat Co., et al. vs. Comstock Silver King Mining Co., et al.*, 36 U. 145, 103 Pac. 253:

All courts agree that these liens are the mere creatures of some statute, and that unless the provisions of the particular statute creating the liens are substantially complied with no lien is acquired.

The rules for construing mechanic's lien statutes are stated in 36 Am. Jur. Mechanics' Liens, Sections 11, 12 and 13, as follows:

Sec. 11. *Generally.*—Mechanics' lien statutes are construed in accordance with the general rules of statutory construction. Thus, such statutes are to be construed as a whole, so that each provision may be in harmony with every other, and the remedial purposes of the law preserved. * * *

Sec. 12. *Strict or Liberal Construction.*—Although in some jurisdictions mechanics' lien statutes are given a strict construction as being in derogation of the common law, the general rule is that such statutes, being remedial, should be liberally construed in order to carry out the purposes of their enactment. As to the provisions of the statutes which are not remedial, however, the majority of courts are inclined to a strict construction. Even remedial provisions of the statutes are not given such a liberal interpretation as will unsettle or destroy the rights of third persons which have intervened. Nor will the rule of liberal construction permit a claim to be sustained when that can be done only by a forced and unnatural interpretation of the language of the statute. Furthermore, although a mechanic's lien is said to be a favorite of the law, a statute cannot be so extended to be applied to cases which do not fall within its provisions. * * *

Sec. 13.—*As to Classes of Persons, Nature of Improvement, and Property Covered by Lien.*—According to the weight of authority, mechanic's lien statutes are strictly construed as to the class or classes of persons who may assert the right to such a lien, the nature of improvements for

which a lien may attach, and the kind of property on which it may be fastened. * * *

(b) *Legislative History of Statute*

When the statutes of Utah were revised in 1933, Sections 3722, 3731, 3732 and 3747, of the Compiled Laws of 1917 were condensed into what became Section 52-1-3, Revised Statutes of 1933 and what is now Section 38-1-3, UCA 1953. So the Court can readily determine the effect of the 1933 revision we set out Section 38-1-3 in full and all material parts of Sections 3722, 3731, 3732 and 3747. Words italicized in Section 38-1-3 were added in the revision. The language italicized in Sections 3722, 3731, 3732 and 3747, was *deleted* when the 1933 revision was enacted.

Section 38-1-3 UCA 1953

38-1-3. Contractors, subcontractors and all persons performing labor upon, or furnishing materials to be used in, the construction or alteration of, or addition to, or repair of, any building, structure or improvement upon land; all foundry men and boiler makers; all persons performing labor or furnishing materials for the construction, repairing or carrying on of any mill, manufactory or hoisting works; all persons who shall do work or furnish materials for the *prospecting*, development, preservation or working of any mining claim, mine, *quarry, oil or gas well*, or deposit; and *licensed* architects and engineers and artisans who have furnished designs, plats, plans, maps, specifications, drawings, estimates of cost, surveys or superintendence, or who have rendered other like professional service, or bestowed labor, shall have

a lien upon the property upon *or concerning* which they have rendered service, performed labor or furnished materials, for the value of the service rendered, labor *performed* or materials furnished by each respectively, whether at the instance of the owner or of any other person acting by his authority as agent, contractor or otherwise. *Such* liens shall attach only to such interest as the owner may have in the *property*, but the interest of a lessee of a mining claim, mine or deposit, whether working under bond or otherwise, shall for the purposes of this chapter include products mined and excavated while the same remain upon the premises included within the lease. (All of the italicized words were added to the 1933 revision. The language following the first comma in the last sentence should be compared with Section 3732.)

Sections 3722, 3731, 3732, and 3747, Compiled Laws of 1917.

3722. *Mechanics, materialmen, contractors, sub-contractors, builders, and all persons of every class performing labor upon or furnishing materials to be used in the construction, alteration, addition to, or repair, either in whole or in part, of any building, bridge, ditch, flume, aqueduct, tunnel, fence, railroad, wagon road, or other structure or improvement upon land, and also architects, engineers, and artisans who have furnished designs, plats, plans, maps, specifications, drawings, estimates of cost, surveys, or superintendence, or who have rendered other like professional service or bestowed labor in whole or part, describing, illustrating, or superintending such structure or work*

done or to be done, or in any part connected therewith, shall have a lien upon the property upon which they have rendered service, or performed labor, or furnished materials, for the value of such service rendered, labor done, or materials furnished, by each respectively, whether at the instance of the owner or of any other person acting by his authority or under him as agent, contractor, or otherwise; provided, that a lien or liens shall attach only to such interest as the owner or lessee may have in the real estate. (Italicized words do not appear in the 1933 revision.)

3731. *The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all persons who shall do work or furnish materials for the working, preservation, or development of any mine, lode, mining claim, or deposit yielding metals or minerals of any kind, or for the working, preservation, or development of any such mine, lode, or deposit in search of such metals or minerals, and to all persons who shall work or furnish materials upon any shaft, tunnel, incline, adit, drift, drain, or other excavation of any such mine, lode, or deposit; * * ** (Italicized words do not appear in the 1933 revision.)

3732. *The next preceding section shall not be deemed to apply to the owner or owners of any mine, lode deposit, shaft, tunnel, incline, adit, drift, or other excavation when the same shall be worked by a lessee, under bond or otherwise; but, in such case, persons entitled to a lien under this chapter shall have a lien on the leasehold interest and on the ores and mineral bearing rock or dirt*

mined and excavated by the lessee. (Italicized words do not appear in the 1933 revision.)

3747. All foundrymen and boilermakers *and* all persons performing labor or furnishing *machinery, or boilers, or castings, or other* material for the construction *or* repairing or carrying on of any mill, manufactory, or hoisting works *shall have a lien on such mill, manufactory, or hoisting works, for such work or labor done on such machinery, or boiler, or castings, or other material furnished by each respectively. And all the provisions of this chapter respecting the mode of filing, recording, securing, and enforcing the liens of contractors and others, and the word superstructure whenever it occurs in this chapter shall be applicable to the provisions of this section.* (Italicized words do not appear in the 1933 revision.)

The gist of Appellant's argument on pages 8 to 14 of its brief is that the revised version of the mechanics' lien law (Section 52-1-3, Revised Statutes 1933) broadened the previously enacted statutes to provide that work performed for the prospecting, development, preservation or working of an oil or gas well need only *concern* the property involved and need not be done *upon* such property or *for* the prospecting, etc. of such property. This was accomplished, it is argued, by the addition of the word "concerning" and the words "oil or gas well" in the revised statute. Because there is nothing in the revised statute to limit the applicability of the word "concerning" to liens for work done for the development of an oil or gas well (and Appellant makes no such contention), Appellant's argument *must* be that ever since

1933 work performed by *all persons named in the statute* need only *concern* the property involved and need not be performed *upon* or *for* such property.

It is our position that the word “concerning” has applicability only to liens given to architects, engineers and artisans. There being nothing indicating an intention to restrict applicability of the word to liens for work done for the development of oil or gas wells, we can test the soundness of Appellant’s argument by applying the word to liens given to other persons named in the statute. If the word “concerning” was interpreted as applying to the persons first named in the statute the following conflict would be produced: Whereas the first part of the statute gives liens to contractors, sub-contractors and all persons “performing labor *upon*, or furnishing materials *to be used in*” (Emphasis added) the construction, etc. of any building, structure or improvement “upon land”, the word “concerning” as construed by Appellant would broaden the act to give liens to persons whose labor is not *upon*, and whose materials are not *to be used in*, but which only “concern” such properties.

We submit that if the legislature had intended to make the sweeping change in the applicability of the statute, it would have done more to accomplish that result than to merely add the word “concerning” when the former statutes were condensed and revised. Realizing that it cannot base its case upon the mere addition of the word “concerning”, the Appellant tries to establish that the legislature made other changes in 1933 which, it is argued, indicate an intent to “specifically provide that all persons who do work for the development of an oil well shall have a lien upon the property concerning which

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